
 
 

 

COMMUNITY HOUSING & NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

Committee Members:  Golden, Ewing, Alexander and Williams 

Chaired by Mayor Pro Tem Golden 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 – 10:00 A.M. 

3
RD

 FLOOR LOBBY CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

MINUTES 

 
Present:  

Chairman Jeff Golden, and Committee Members Chris Williams,  

and Jason Ewing  

 

Absent: 

Committee Member Latimer Alexander 

 

Also Present: 

Council Member Cynthia Davis 

 

Staff Present:  

Randy McCaslin, Deputy City Manager; Jeron Hollis, Communication Officer & Public Engagement 

Director; Mike McNair, Director of Community Development; JoAnne Carlyle, City Attorney; Richard 

Fuqua, Affordable Housing Manager; Nena Wilson, CD Administrator; Michelle McNair, Community 

Resource Manager; Toni Jackson, Housing Specialist; Lauren Atwell-Bass, Community Resource 

Specialist; Alisha Doulen, Community Resource Specialist; Mark Walker, Inspector; Maria Smith, 

Deputy City Clerk; and Lisa Vierling, City Clerk 

 

News Media: 

Pat Kimbrough, High Point Enterprise 

 

Others Present: 

Judy Stalder, TREBIC 

 

Note:  The following hand-outs were distributed during the meeting and will be attached as a permanent 

part of these proceedings:   

 

 Consolidated Annual Performance & Evaluation Report (CAPER) 

 Area of Interest Map 

 Abandoned and Junked Motor Vehicles 

 Operation InAsMuch (OIAM) Update 

 

Chairman Golden called the Community Housing & Neighborhood Development Committee meeting to 

order at 10:00 a.m. 

 



Community Housing &                                                       Minutes                                                 September 13, 2016 

Neighborhood Dev. Committee   

Page 2 

 

1) Discussion:  2015/2016 CAPER & Action Plan (HUD programs) 

 

Mike McNair, Director of Community Development, gave a brief update on the CAPER & 

Action Plan to the Committee due to no action required.  He reviewed the Funding Sources: 

 NSP Program Income 

 General Fund CoC (Shelter Plus Care) 

 CDBG 

 CDBG Program Income 

 HOME 

 HOME Program Income 

 Section 108 

 NCHFA 

 VITA 

 DOJ (Harmony House) 

He then reviewed briefly how they were distributed and how they were made available to view 

on-line as well. 

Mr. McNair pointed out, “A picture is worth a thousand words.” He shared photos of construction 

training classes with affordable housing activities, Operation InAsMuch (OIAM) (Southside 

Community), Homeownership activities, Habitat for Humanity, and Distribution of the 

Homebuyers Assistance Activity.  He shared Community & Neighborhood Development 

Activities and Helping Hands how they were able to put a house up for homeless families.  He 

also added there were activities for clean-ups and gardens etc…   

He reported that they follow a schedule for the CAPER as required by HUD.     

Mayor Pro Tem Golden asked Mr. McNair if they plan to take what they compared to what they 

actually did and wanted to know if there were any penalties if they do not meet their expectations.  

Mr. McNair stated if it continues then HUD would contact the jurisdiction.   He also mentioned 

that if the money is not spent within a certain time period, HUD may take action to put the 

jurisdiction on a spending plan.     

2)  Discussion:  Potential policy to tow abandoned and junk vehicles from private property 

 

Mr. McNair explained that staff has received many complaints from citizens regarding junk 

vehicles.  He reviewed the following Article G which gives the city the authority to remove 

vehicles from private properties, although the city has not taken advantage of this provision in the 

Code.     

Council Member C. Davis mentioned the health, fire and safety hazards and wanted those to be 

justified.  Mr. McNair explained these are laid out in the code.   JoAnne Carlyle, City Attorney, 

pointed out the Code contains extremely old language which needs to be updated  and needs to be 

corrected to be in line with the current law as to what is allowed as well as a  rotation contract for 

towing that has been in place for a while.  She pointed out there seems to be some conflicts in the 

language, and one or the other needs to be fixed to match accordingly.  Mayor Pro Tem Golden 

asked for an expected timeline and Ms. Carlyle stated she anticipates it will take at least a couple 

of months for staff to review the language in the Code as well as the language in the current 

towing contract.  It was noted that the definition of an abandoned vehicle can be found in the 

ordinance and Ms. Carlyle pointed out there is a difference between an abandoned and a junk 

vehicle.   



Community Housing &                                                       Minutes                                                 September 13, 2016 

Neighborhood Dev. Committee   

Page 3 

 

Council Member C. Davis asked if it might be just as simple to do a “cut and paste” from the old 

to the new.  Ms. Carlyle replied that it is scattered throughout and because it is referenced in 

many places, it would not only require a thorough review, but a rewrite as well.   She stated that it 

would be similar to a rotation contract for the towing and would be one to three years.  

Committee Member Ewing inquired if the conflict would be in our language or the language of 

the contract and Ms. Carlyle stated they would be making sure they would match.  Committee 

Member Ewing wanted to make sure if we were rewriting an ordinance that we were doing it 

based on the city’s needs and focus as opposed to doing an ordinance to fit an existing 

contract.  Ms. Carlyle replied that her focus would be to ensure consistency for both.  Mr. McNair 

noted that they are trying to be clearer in the process. Committee Member Ewing pointed out 

there are many tools available for enforcement.   Mr. McCaslin noted that they have been citing 

people with cars on lawns and for the most part, they have been complying and have moved 

them.  Mr. McNair then shared some photos of abandoned vehicles, many of which were located 

off of Martin Luther King Boulevard.   

Committee Member Ewing spoke about wanting to utilize the current accessible tools, going after 

the nuisance enforcement and then doing it as aggressively as needed or just use the tools as 

needed.  Mr. McCaslin stated it is as part of the nuisance clean up and there are abandoned cars in  

neighborhoods and it would be unsightly and would hurt the property values in the neighborhoods 

and needs to be addressed just as the boarded up houses need to be addressed.   

Committee Member Ewing asked if once areas get cleaned up if staff will be as aggressive in 

enforcement or if the objective of staff is to clean up the neighborhoods, then use the ordinance 

when needed.  As far as disposition of the vehicles, Committee Member Ewing stated he would 

like to see the city partner with some of the local auction houses so staff will not have to touch the 

vehicles.  Mr. McCaslin reminded the Committee that this is a process is involved and it could 

still be problematic to have to go through title searches, waiting periods etc…   

3)  Discussion:  Infill Housing and Nuisance Enforcement  

Mr. McCaslin gave a brief update from last week’s meeting on the infill process and noted staff 

has been working with the tax office in taking a much more aggressive approach for collection of 

back taxes.  The city received a listing from them with 365 properties that were in some type of 

pending foreclosure.  After reviewing the list, staff recommended 40+ properties that they wanted 

to start with that had some strategic value to the City of High Point and were located in areas 

where they are trying to halt the downward progression of certain neighborhoods.  He reviewed 

the current map (Areas of Interest) that the Bank of North Carolina is interested in.  Of particular 

interest is the area from University Parkway, east of Five Points and around Montlieu Elementary 

School as these are areas where the city can do infill projects that would have an impact on the 

neighborhood as well.  He mentioned they have looked at vacant properties and boarded up 

houses in an effort to demolish and rebuild. 

He mentioned the structure on Radford Street that is currently under construction and almost 

complete.  He pointed out there were three people that had expressed an interest in that home and 

one would take ownership in October.  He shared that there was a list of 6-8 more who are 

interested in owning homes and staff is working with them and hopefully will identify other 

locations.  Mr. McCaslin reported that they are currently looking at a vacant piece of property on 

Kimerly that may end up being the second project through the Bank of North Carolina’s program.  

Other areas that are being considered are in the High Point Central area, Cedrow (east of 311/74), 

etc….   Mr. McCaslin also shared that they are working with the Guilford County Tax Office on 

other properties that are up for foreclosure through the program and these properties would also 

be evaluated by Mr. McNair and his staff for possible land banking.  He pointed out Habitat has 



Community Housing &                                                       Minutes                                                 September 13, 2016 

Neighborhood Dev. Committee   

Page 4 

 

concentrated in the area south of this location and they are also looking at several lots in that area 

to pass along to Habitat so they can continue their program in that neighborhood.  He explained 

the goals of program are to keep the neighborhoods from descending any further, raise the 

property values in the neighborhoods, and to address problem/blight areas. 

Committee Member Williams questioned how much of an impact this has had on the city and the 

Federal dollars when it comes to housing and freeing the city up to look at other areas also.  Mr. 

McCaslin replied at this point probably very little and explained that the Community 

Development & Housing’s program is continuing as laid out in the Annual Action Plan.  He 

noted they are not doing anything differently now than before the Bank of North Carolina came 

out with their program and that staff is looking at this to supplement it, to be a partner with it and 

mentioned that the city is looking for more partners to step forward (other banks, private groups, 

non-profits, etc…).   

Council Member C. Davis mentioned the tax foreclosures workshop that was held last week and 

wanted to know if the property on Radford was a foreclosure;  Mr. McCaslin confirmed it was.  

Then she stated based on what she got from the meeting last week, she questioned that the city 

gave them the property to build the house on since the property was purchased by the city in a 

foreclosure proceedings.  She stated she was confused because she learned from the workshop 

that the city was not supposed to do that because the city is supposed to ask for market value for 

the appraised price of the property.   

City Attorney Carlyle explained there are many different statutes that they are applying in 

different ways.  She noted that the city did not follow the procedures set forth in N.C. General 

Statute 160A for the transfer, instead it was done by contract which was outside of the statutes.  

She further explained that that the contract was based on the consideration that they provide low-

moderate income housing instead of consideration of a specified dollar amount.   After the 

explanation, Council Member C. Davis stated she was still confused and asked if it might be 

possible to sit down with Ms. Carlyle and the managers to help her understand the process better. 

Committee Member Ewing felt it really would depend on how aggressive the city is versus 

picking and choosing locations due to demand, so the city should determine what the goal is and 

apply the process.  Council Member C. Davis expressed concerns and thought the bank had to 

purchase the property at the fair market value or whatever the appraised price for the property 

was.   

Mr. McCaslin asked if this is a method that the City of Charlotte has been using it was noted it 

was.  Ms. Carlyle reported that when they first started reviewing this, she spent a lot of time with 

her colleagues across the State breaking new ground.  Mr. McCaslin reiterated that their goal was 

to put affordable housing out there.  Council Member C. Davis stated her concerns were with the 

process and she felt it was not open for anyone else to have the ability to take advantage of what 

was being offered to others.   

Mayor Pro Tem Golden noted that although the Bank of North Carolina did come forward and 

got the program moving, he wondered if there might be any additional lenders/banks that are 

doing something similar.  Mr. McNair felt that others might be watching to see what is 

happening.  Mr. McCaslin stated that they are getting Community Reinvestment credit through 

the Federal Government and Mr. McNair confirmed that they would have to perform certain 

activities in certified Census tracts to get credits from the Feds.   Mayor Pro Tem Golden noticed 

how banks are competitive like anyone else.  Committee Member Ewing pointed out once the city 

has 3-4 properties under our belt then it would signify that that the program has been successful.  

 



Community Housing &                                                       Minutes                                                 September 13, 2016 

Neighborhood Dev. Committee   

Page 5 

 

 

4) Update:  Operation InAsMuch Project 

Toni Jackson, Community Development Housing Specialist, presented an update of what 

happened since last month regarding Operation InAsMuch (OIAM).  She started with East 

Central area and advised that staff is mainly concentrating on the following four Census block 

groups:   

 139.001 

 139.002 

 139.003 

 139.004 

 

She reviewed the map for Census block group 139.001 which included ten owner occupied 

homeowners; 53 homeowners in 139.002 for a total of 63 owner-occupied that they have 

identified. 

 

She noted that have already started the homeowner selection which was done differently this year 

from last year.  They sent out the letters to let them know that they would be coming out to the 

neighborhoods and asking the homeowners to contact OIAM to let them know what repair needs 

they have.  She followed up on the days of August 26
th
 and 27

th
 where the Housing Consultants 

visited those homeowners to ascertain what exactly needed to be done in their homes and which 

homes could be done in one day.  With that information, she reported that 25 families were 

submitted to Community Housing Solutions for eligibility verification. 

 

She shared that volunteer recruitment is also underway with previous OIAM volunteers and 36 

additional churches and organizations being invited to participate.  Last year for the Southside 

OIAM, they had approximately 140 volunteers broken down into groups.  This year, they are 

expanding on the number of volunteers and will have an additional 36 churches and other 

community groups to volunteer.  She shared their first information session would be on 

September 20
th
 at Baldwin’s Chapel SDA Church at 6 p.m.  She also shared after the meeting 

they would be ordering t-shirts, hats, yard signs, etc….  The next OIAM event is scheduled for  

Saturday, November 5
th
.  She pointed out many city employees have also expressed an interest in 

volunteering. 

 

Committee Member Williams asked if they reached out to the churches for the volunteers and 

Ms. Jackson replied that they did send letters to the churches and sent a volunteer recruitment 

flier to the churches as well.    Ms. Jackson explained why they chose Burns Hill for the next 

OIAM event which was because they wanted a meeting place in a community where everyone  

could come together to do their volunteer recruitment.  Committee Member Williams inquired as 

to if staff reached out to the Macedonia and Pershing Street neighborhoods because of their close 

proximity.  Mr. McNair reiterated that approximately 63 families have been identified in the 

139.001 and 139.002 areas.  They are attempting to contact those that have not yet responded, but 

if they cannot reach them, there is a possibility that they will possibly drift into another block 

group, probably 139.004.   

Mr. McCaslin asked how many homes could be addressed in one day.  Mr. McNair replied last 

year they did 11 homes and this year they would like to increase this number to 25.  Mr. 

McCaslin confirmed these are all owner occupied.   

 



Community Housing &                                                       Minutes                                                 September 13, 2016 

Neighborhood Dev. Committee   

Page 6 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:53 a.m. upon motion duly 

made and seconded. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

Maria A. Smith 

       Deputy City Clerk 

 

___________________________________ 

Jeff Golden, Chairman 


